

CLUB RULES EFFECTIVE FROM 1 MARCH 2017
THESE RULES MUST BE READ AND BE COMPLIED WITH BY ALL MEMBERS

1. The Club shall be called Basingstoke and Mid Hants Athletic Club and shall be affiliated to England Athletics Ltd* and to any other Associations which are also affiliated to England Athletics Ltd that the Management Committee may deem necessary in the interest of the club (ie HAA SEAA)
2. The purposes of the Club are to promote the sport of Amateur Athletics and associated athletic competition in Basingstoke and North Hampshire and community participation in the same.
3. That membership of the Club as an athlete be confined to amateur as defined by the UKA rule number 1 Eligibility to Compete & Rule 3 Club Membership
- 4a. The government of the Club shall be vested in a committee consisting of:

Officers:

President, Chairman, Vice Chairman, Honorary Secretary and Treasurer.

Office Holders:

Membership Secretary, Men's Secretary, Women's Secretary, Road Running Secretary, Cross Country Secretary, Masters Secretary, Minutes Secretary, Junior Secretary, Youth Development, Coaching Coordinator. *The above mentioned 14 Officers, have voting rights on the committee.*

Post Holders:

Public Relations Officer, Club Welfare Officer, Supplies Officer, Sponsorship Secretary, Officials Coordinator, Refreshments Coordinator, Website Manager (via Chairman) Men's Track & Field Manager(s) (via Men's Sec), Women's Track & Field Team Manager (via Women's Sec), Veteran Men's Team Manager, Veteran Women's Team Manager (via Masters Sec), Junior Track & Field Team Manager(s), Twinning Rep (via Youth Development and Community Relations Officer), Auditors (via Treasurer), *Post holders do not have voting rights on the committee. However their voting rights can be gained through the Officers and Office Holders as shown:*

All the above mentioned Officers, Office Holders and Post Holders shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting.

- 4b. The Annual General Meeting shall also elect Vice Presidents.
- 4c. This committee shall have the power to form such sub-committees as shall be deemed necessary for the successful running of the Club, co-opting any member whom they deem necessary and suitable. To enable a valid club committee meeting to be held, then a quorum should consist of a minimum of 50% of the elected committee membership (i.e. 7 Members).
- 5a. The annual subscription to the Club shall be agreed at the A.G.M and advised with the Annual Membership Renewal Notice. The sum will be for the use of all Club Facilities including coaching, equipment and the use of Down Grange Track and Floodlighting or any venue arranged/approved by the committee. Members who do not live in the local area and therefore do not use any of the facilities provided by the Club, along with second claim members and members, who are 60 years old or over, shall pay a reduced Annual Subscription set by the club committee and approved at the AGM. This fee will be waived for those holding a UKA Coaching license and who coach on a weekly basis and/or licensed officials who have officiated at a minimum of six events in the previous 12 months but wish to compete for the club. The Fee for Road Running Members who do not use the Track will be at least £10.00 less than the Annual Senior 1st Claim Subscription. Eligibility disputes over the reduced membership to be resolved by the Club's General Committee.
Membership fees for the junior age groups to be at least £10.00 less than the Senior Rate.
Juniors are those aged under 20 from 1st Jan in the year of birth date and they become Senior after 1st Jan the following year.
- 5b. Facilities user fee charged at a reduced Annual Subscription set by the club committee and approved at the AGM. Applicable to 1st claim members of other named clubs who elect not to join Basingstoke and Mid Hants AC as 2nd claim members, but who occasionally use the expertise of the club's coaches, or visiting coaches and or club equipment and/or facilities hired by the club. Note: such athletes must be full members of a club in order to hold adequate insurance cover.

5c. All users of any facility must carry their proof of payment card with them at all training sessions.

5d. Subscriptions to be due on 1st April each year with the Membership year being 1st. April to 31st March the following year. Members joining between April and September inclusive to pay a full years' fee and new members joining on or after 1st. October, 50% of the annual fee. Members failing to renew their annual fee within two months from the due date will forfeit the right to attend organised Club training sessions, or to be selected to represent the Club in team competitions. UKA rule 3 (11)(i) applies.

5e. No member shall be allowed to take part in any Club Team Contest until his or her subscription and arrears are paid.

5f. A Family Membership to the Club shall be available which will be for 2 parents and all juniors.

5g. Non Competitive Membership will be available to those who wish to support, Officiate or Coach for the Club, but not compete.

5h. Senior athletes who are 1st claim members of another athletics club, who are desirous of competing for the Club under UKA Higher Competition rules must first be elected as 2nd claim members of the Club and have paid the appropriate membership fee. They are also required to register their intention with UK Athletics by the required date

5(i):Coaches and Officials holding a UKA qualification (Licence) and are active on behalf of the club, shall be exempt from paying the supporters fee. However, they must renew their continued membership each year

6. MEMBERSHIP

6a Membership of the Club shall be open to anyone interested in the sport on application regardless of sex, age, disability, ethnicity, nationality, sexual orientation, religion or other beliefs. However, limitation of membership according to available facilities is allowable on a non-discriminatory basis.

6b The Club may have different classes of membership and subscription on a non-discriminatory and fair basis. The Club will keep subscriptions at levels that will not pose a significant obstacle to people participating.

6c The Club Committee may refuse membership, or remove it, only for good cause such as conduct or character likely to bring the Club or sport into disrepute. Appeal against refusal or removal may be made to the members.

6d. Any person wishing to join the Club shall apply on the form prescribed for that purpose and shall sign thereon a declaration to the effect that he or she is eligible under the provisions of Rule 3 above. He or she shall send this application to the Membership Secretary with the subscription as detailed in the rules. Membership renewals and members contact information can be administered using the club on line membership database. By applying for club membership you authorise the club to hold your details on line for the benefit of the club. On attaining the Under 13 year age group, the club will use the information to effect your National Registration for competition as an athlete (normally with England Athletics), subject to their current registration fee being received by the Club promptly.

6e. The application shall then be considered by the committee. If the application be rejected, the full subscription shall be returned to the applicant.

6f. The minimum age for attending Club training sessions and/or joining the Club shall be 7 years, rising 8 (i.e. must be in School Year 3).

6g. All 1st Claim Members of the Club that train for any discipline will be expected to compete in any Competition organized by the Club on their behalf including league fixtures. Failure to compete may result in the Committee deciding not to invite renewal of membership the following year. When applying for New Membership or renewing existing membership, an athlete is agreeing to abide by this rule.

7. That a member be desirous of resigning shall give notice in writing to the Hon General Secretary or Membership Secretary at least 3 days before the date on which his or her subscription is due, or become liable for the ensuing years subscription.

8. UKA Rule 19 applies.for info .(the rule states that all betting at the venue of an event is strictly prohibited)

9. The committee shall have the power to expel any member whose conduct they consider to be injurious to the character and interest of the Club.

10a. The AGM of the Club shall be held in February. Members wishing an item to be included on the agenda should give the Hon General Secretary or nominated person 14 days notice in writing. The general secretary or nominated person, will post the preliminary notice and the final notice of the AGM on the club web site 28 and 14 days respectfully before the date of the AGM

10b. Nominations for Committee Posts shall be made to the Honorary General Secretary or nominated person in writing, to arrive at least 14 days prior to the AGM.

10c. Nominations for Committee posts will not be accepted at the AGM from the floor, except in the case, where no written nomination has been received previously.

10d. All club members can attend the Annual General Meeting, but only members over 15 years of age can vote.

11. That a Special General Meeting shall be called by the Honorary General Secretary or nominated person, on receiving a request signed by six members of the Club stating the object of the meeting.

12. That no alteration or addition may be made to the rules except at the AGM or a Special General Meeting called for that purpose. Notice of such alterations must appear on the agenda for such a meeting.

13. The Club shall have a banking account and cheques shall be signed by any two of the following: Life Vice President, Chairman, Treasurer, Honorary General Secretary, Membership Secretary. The Club financial year shall be from 1st January - 31st December annually. The accounts to be audited annually by two members of the club elected for that purpose at the AGM. .

All surplus income or profits are re-invested in the Club. No surpluses or assets will be distributed to members or third parties.

14. All members competing at an athletics meeting are requested to wear the Club's colours and must wear these when the rules of the competition require it. The colours are amber & red with two vertical black stripes for the vest and black shorts or briefs. Leotards and Crop Tops in Club Colours may also be worn.

15. All members shall be expected to carry out their training in a disciplined manner either at Down Grange or at any sports hall or gym or venue hired by the Club for training.

16. On Club training nights, for reasons of safety all members must report to a coach or person supervising an athletic discipline of their choice and should remain under his or her supervision until [a] the session is complete, [b] permission is sought to transfer to another supervised session, [c] the athlete requests to leave the session for personal reasons.

17. Every member shall be in possession of a copy of the Club Rules, which will be given to him or her without payment, before applying to become a Member of the Club. Only when the Rules have been read and understood will a new Member be considered for Election. In the case of all members under 16 years of age and any members with learning difficulties a parent, guardian or carer will be asked to exercise this responsibility.

18. Upon dissolution of the Club any remaining assets shall be given or transferred to another registered CASC, a registered charity or the sport's governing body. No individual member shall benefit from the financial disposal except personal expenses incurred through Club business.

19. A first claim member of the athletic club only, may be awarded an Honorary Life Membership by the committee on recommendation from any senior, fully subscribed, member for:

a) Long and Loyal service of 25 unbroken years to the Club. Service can commence from any of the junior age groups. The records held by the Membership Secretary will be used to determine the actual period of service for this purpose.

- b) Selection and representation for a Great Britain, or any one of the United Kingdom National teams at all athletics disciplines in a senior or veteran age group (The criteria in the award of an Honorary Life Membership for the veteran age groups will be that, the member must be selected by the National Governing Body and go on to represent a Great Britain or any United Kingdom National team and not be self entered for a veterans international event)
- c) A Honorary Junior Membership is awarded for any junior selection and representation for a Great Britain, or any one of the United Kingdom National teams in any athletics discipline. The Honorary Junior Membership is valid while an athlete meets the definition of an UKA junior or a minimum period of 3 years.

The full committee's decision is final for Rules 19(a), (b) and (c).

20. A first claim member of the Athletic Club only may be awarded an Honorary Life Presidency, by recommendation by the committee to the next AGM, on nomination from any senior fully subscribed member in:

Recognition of loyal service to the Club as an athletic official, coach or a committee Officer, Office Holder or Post Holder.

A Certificate will be awarded to the so honoured member.

Rules are maintained by the Honorary General Secretary or nominated person.